ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE TRANSPORTATI ON STANDI NG COWM TTEE
March 1, 2011
1: 05 p. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve Peggy W1l son, Chair
Representative Lance Pruitt, Vice Chair
Representati ve Cat hy Engstrom Munoz
Representati ve Max G uenberg
Representati ve Pete Petersen

VEMBERS ABSENT

Representative Eric Feige
Representative Craig Johnson

COWM TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 22
"An Act prohibiting the use of a cellular tel ephone when driving
a notor vehicle; and providing for an effective date."

- HEARD & HELD

HOUSE BI LL NO. 128

"An Act relating to prohibiting the use of cellular telephones
by mnors when driving notor vehicles; and providing for an
effective date.”

- HEARD & HELD
HOUSE BI LL NO. 35
"An Act relating to prohibiting the use of cellular telephones
when driving a notor vehicle; and providing for an effective
date."

- SCHEDULED BUT NOT HEARD
HOUSE BILL NO 68
"An Act relating to prohibiting the use of cellular telephones
when driving a notor vehicle."

- SCHEDULED BUT NOT HEARD

PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -1- March 1, 2011



BILL: HB 22
SHORT TI TLE: NO CELL PHONE USE VWHEN DRI VI NG
SPONSCR(s) : REPRESENTATI VE(s) MJUNQZ, HERRON

01/ 18/ 11 (H) PREFI LE RELEASED 1/7/11

01/18/ 11 (H) READ THE FIRST TI ME - REFERRALS
01/ 18/ 11 (H) TRA, JUD, FIN

03/ 01/ 11 (H) TRA AT 1:00 PM CAPI TOL 17

BILL: HB 128
SHORT TI TLE. BAN CELL PHONE USE BY M NORS WHEN DRI VI NG
SPONSOR(s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) GARDNER

01/ 28/ 11 (H) READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
01/ 28/ 11 (H) TRA, JUD
03/ 01/ 11 (H) TRA AT 1:00 PM CAPI TOL 17

W TNESS REG STER

KENDRA KLOSTER, St aff

Representative Cathy Minoz

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT:  presented HB 22, on behalf of one the joint
pri me sponsors, Representative Cathy Minoz.

Cl NDY CASHEN, Governor's H ghway Saf ety Representati ve;
Adm ni strator, Al aska H ghway Safety Ofice (AHSO

Di vi sion of Program Devel opnment

Department of Transportation & Public Facilities (DOT&PF)

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answered questions during the discussion on
HB 22 and HB 128.

RANDI SPRAY, Intern

Representative Berta Gardner

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified and answered questions during the
di scussi on of HB 128.

ALFRED MCKI NLEY, SR., Executive Comm ttee Menber

Grand Canp Al aska Native Brotherhood/ Al aska Native Sisterhood
( ANB)

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 22.

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 2- March 1, 2011



JERRY LUCKHAUPT, Assistant Revisor of Statutes

Legi sl ative Legal Counsel

Legi sl ative Legal and Research Services

Legi sl ative Affairs Agency (LAA)

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified and answered questions during the
di scussi on of HB 22.

HANS BRI NKE, Captai n; Conmander

Bureau of H ghway Patrol (BHP), Al aska State Trooper (AST)
Department of Public Safety (DPS)

Wasill a, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified and answered questions during the
di scussi on of HB 22.

ANNE CARPENETI, Assistant Attorney Ceneral

Legal Services Section

Crimnal Division

Depart ment of Law (DQL)

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Testified and answered questions during the
di scussi on of HB 22.

M TCH FALK, Owner
Bul | wi nkl e's Pi zza

Juneau, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 22.

RCDNEY DI AL, Lieutenant, Deputy Comrander

A Detachnent, Division of Al aska State Troopers

Department of Public Safety (DPS)

Ket chi kan, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified and answered questions during the
di scussi on of on HB 22.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE
1: 05: 31 PM

CHAIR PEGGY WLSON called the House Transportation Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 1:05 p.m Representatives P.
Wl son, Minoz, Pruitt, Guenberg, and Petersen were present at
the call to order.

HB 22- NO CELL PHONE USE WHEN DRI VI NG

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 3- March 1, 2011



1: 06: 14 PM

CHAIR P. WLSON announced that the first order of business would
be HOUSE BILL NO. 22, "An Act prohibiting the use of a cellular
t el ephone when driving a notor vehicle; and providing for an
effective date."

1: 07: 13 PM

CHAIR P. WLSON explained that on today's commttee cal endar are
four bills all related to cell phones. She indicated that
Representative Doogan has declined to present his bill today.

She read his letter into the record [original punctuation
provi ded] :

| understand the House Transportation Committee you
chair will be taking up the issues of cell phone use
while driving on March 1, 2011. It was al so brought
to ny attention that you offered to |ook at the
several cell phone related bills at the sane tine,
t hough Rep. Munoz' HB 22 will be the likely vehicle
nmovi ng forward.

| appreciate the opportunity to present nmy own HB 35,

but, in the interest of tinme and efficiency, | wll
respectfully decline to do so. I would urge the
conmittee to consider some of the nerits of HB 35, as
it deliberates on this inportant safety issue. The

different between the two bills is that HB 22 nmakes
and exception for hands-fee cell phone use, while ny

bill does not. Studies have shown the hands-free cel
use is not significantly less distracting, and that
driving ability is still inpaired. It is different

than talking to a passenger in the car, because it
requirenent different thought processes, and also
because passengers are aware of changing road
condi tions.

Again, | thank you for the opportunity to present,

t hough | respectfully decline, and hope the conmttee

will pass a bill that best provides for safe roadways.
1: 08: 34 PM

CHAIR P. WLSON related that the commttee would not hear HB 35,
but would consider provisions in the bill, along with the other

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -4- March 1, 2011



cell phone bills, and the national studies which highlight
research and statistics for the commttee to consider.

1:09: 41 PM

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG explained that |ast |egislature he
introduced a cell phone bill which did not institute a primary
st op. He related that he reintroduced the cell phone bill, HB

68, this legislature. He asked to place on the record that he
does not plan to nove forward with HB 68.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG then noved to adopt the proposed
commttee substitute (CS) for HB 22, Ilabeled 27-LS0155\B,
Luckhaupt, 2/24/11 as the working docunent. There being no
obj ection, Version B was before the conmttee.

1:11: 38 PM

REPRESENTATI VE MUNQZ introduced Kendra Kloster, her chief of
staff, to present the commttee substitute.

KENDRA KLOSTER, Staff, Representative Cathy Moz, on behalf of
one of the joint prine sponsors, stated the proposed conmittee
substitute (CS) for HB 22 would prohibit the use of cell phones
while driving a motor vehicle. This bill version allows for
hands-free devices to be used to accommobdate commercial drivers
and tour operators. The changes in the CS include a definition
for "enmergency" and "hands-free node." Additionally, as
Representative G uenberg nentioned, the CS includes a provision
that identifies cell phone use as a primary offense. She
referred to several studies in nenbers packets. One study
conducted by the University of Uah found notorists using cell
phones are as inpaired as drunk drivers. Additionally, the AHSO
indicates that 60 percent of Alaskans are talking on their cel
phones while driving. She reported, anecdotally, that her peers
agree they often use their cell phones while driving but they
recogni ze this activity needs to be stopped.

1: 13: 09 PM

M5. KLOSTER referred to another report in nenbers' packets
[ Legi sl ature Research Report, January 26, 2011, "Laws Regardi ng
Cel lular Phone Use by Drivers"] which conpares actions other
states have taken. She reported that 9 states and the District
of Col unbi a have inposed statew de bans on using cell phones, 19
states and the District of Colunbia prohibit use of a cell phone
while operating a school bus, 28 states and the District of

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 5- March 1, 2011



Col unmbi a prohibit novice drivers - usually defined as 18 years
old or younger - fromusing cell phones when operating vehicles,
and 30 states - including Alaska - and the District of Colunbia
ban drivers from texting while driving. She al so reported that
the National Highway Traffic Safety Admnistration (NHTSA)
provided statistics, including that in 2009, 995 deaths and 20
percent of crashes involving injuries had reports of distracted
driving fromcell phone usage.

1: 14: 27 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG pointed out that at his request the
effective date of July 1, 2011 was renoved from the CS. He
asked whether the admnistration would Iike an effective date in
the bill and if so what date should be used.

CHAIR P. WLSON informed nenbers the Departnent of Law and the
Department of Public Safety have each submitted fiscal notes.

1:16:11 PM

CI NDY  CASHEN, Governor's H ghway Safety Representati ve;
Adm ni strator, Alaska Hi ghway Safety Ofice (AHSO, D vision of
Program Devel opnent, explained the Al aska H ghway Safety Ofice
(AHSO) administers federal funding to data-driven effective
progranms that encourage safe driving behavior. She stated the
National Hi ghway Traffic Safety Admi nistration's (NHTSA) policy
on cellular phone use on driving is based on the premse that it
is the driver's prinmary responsibility to operate a notor
vehicle safely. The task of driving requires full attention and
focus and since cell phone use can distract a driver fromthis
task, risking harm to his/her self and to others, that the
safest course of action is to refrain from using a cell phone
while driving. The NHTSA research shows that driving while using
a cell phone can pose a serious cognitive distraction and can

degrade driver performance. Additionally the NHTSA estimates
that driver distraction from all sources contributes to 25
percent of all police reported traffic crashes. Ten years ago

that statistic was only 15 percent so the nunber is increasing,
she st at ed.

1:17:44 PM
M5. CASHEN reported that according to NHTSA data, drivers using
hand- hel d cell phones increased from four percent in 2002 to siXx

percent in 2008. The Governor's Hi ghway Safety Association
reported that drivers visibly manipulating electronic devices

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 6- March 1, 2011



for such activities such as texting doubled, increasing from .04
percent to one percent. The NHTSA study also indicated, wth
respect to hands-free or hand-held <cell phones, that the
cognitive distraction 1is significant enough to degrade a
driver's performance. Cell phone use can cause drivers to m sSs
seeing key visual or hearing audio cues necessary to avoid a

crash. The results show that nmanual dialing equally as
distracting as groomng or eating, but less distracting than
readi ng or changing nusic conpact discs (CDs). The nunber of
crashes attributable to dialing is nearly identical to the
nunber of crashes associated with talking or |Ilistening, she
sai d.

1:18:45 PM

MS. CASHEN offered additional statistics. The NHTSA statistics
show that in 2009, 30,797 crashes in the United States involved
45,230 drivers with 33,808 fatalities. O the fatalities, 16
per cent, or 5,474 accidents, were attributed to driver
di stracti on.

M5. CASHEN related that accidents involving driver distraction
increased from 7 percent in 2005 to 16 percent in 2009. Duri ng
that tine, according to the Fatality Analysis Reporting System
(FARS) and the National Autonotive Sanpling, fatal crashes
involving reported driver distraction also increased from 10
percent to 16 percent. The two hi ghest percentages of accidents
involving distracted drivers by age group were the under-20 age
group, which had the highest proportion of fatalities involving
di stracted drivers at 16 percent, followed by the 20-29 year-old
drivers with 13 percent of its drivers involved in fatalities
involving distractions. Only 12 percent of light truck drivers
and notorcyclists were involved in accidents attributable to
di stracted driving, and bus drivers had the |owest percentage of
di stracted driving crashes, she stated.

M5. CASHEN prefaced her comments on Alaska's traffic accident
statistics involving cell phone use. She stated that while the
nunbers are low, this is primarily due to the accident forns
that |law enforcenent officers currently use. The crash report
form limts the contributing factors to crashes that officers
can check to two itenms, such as failure to yield, mssing a stop

sign, and running into the back of a car. She inforned nenbers
that currently a subcommttee is working to address the crash
form issues by adding additional itens such as cell phone,

hands-free, and texting as contributing factors for crashes.

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -7- March 1, 2011



1: 20: 59 PM

IVS. CASHEN reviewed Alaska statistics obtained from |aw
enforcenent officer report forms. During 2002 - 2008 a total of
89,770 notor vehicle accidents occurred during the six year
period. O those crashes, |aw enforcenent officers reported 399
i nvolved cell phone usage, 224 crashes involving cell phone use
resulted in property danmage only, 155 crashes resulted in m nor
injuries, 19 crashes resulted in major injuries, and one crash

was fatal. She stressed that the figures were based on |aw
enforcement officer's crash report information, which only allow
two contributing factors to be checked. She pointed out that

142 of the crashes involved drivers between the ages of 16-20,
or 36 percent, which represents a significant nunber of young
peopl e. She indicated that although the state has limted cel
phone use data available, the national data was conpelling
enough for the AHSO to take action. The AHSO created radio and
television advertising wusing federal funds to discourage
di stracted driving including the use of cell phones.

1:22: 27 PM

REPRESENTATIVE PRU TT asked whet her any information was
avai l able on accidents caused by distracted drivers using the
radi o.

M5. CASHEN offered to check. She said she did recall any
general crash information involving radi o use.

1: 23: 21 PM

REPRESENTATI VE MUNQZ recalled that officers are limted in the
criteria identifying causes of accidents when reporting crashes.
She asked how broadening the criteria to add cell phone usage
woul d change information and if she thought it would give a nore
accurate view on crashes.

M5. CASHEN offered her belief that the departnent could collect
far nore extensive data about cell phone use in Al aska. She
acknowl edged the difficulty in obtaining accurate information
based on the current crash form The departnment's goal is to
increase data collection while at the sane tine making it easier
for law enforcenent officers to fill out the crash forns.

REPRESENTATI VE MUNOZ related her wunderstanding that currently

the departnent knows that cell phone use is inplicated in
accidents and can lead to fatalities. She asked whether she

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 8- March 1, 2011



t hought nore thorough information would indicate significantly
nore accidents are due to cell phone use than previously
reported.

M5. CASHEN answer ed yes.

CHAIR P. WLSON commended the departnment for working to change
the crash form

REPRESENTATI VE PETERSEN agr eed. He pointed out sone vehicles
have a navigation device that uses a conputer generated voice
for directions. He asked whether studies have been perforned to
assess the level of distraction when using these enhancenents
with respect to crashes. He related his own experience as a
passenger and that he found the navigation device rather
jarring.

M. CASHEN answered that the navigation technology is relatively
new technology so she did not believe those statistics were

included in the NHTSA study. She said "a distraction is a
distraction but I don't believe it was one that was | ooked at in
the study."” She offered to research and report back to the
committee.
1:26:42 PM

CHAIR P. WLSON recalled that verbal processes use a cognitive
process that can affect drivers differently than listening to a
radi o.

M5. CASHEN reiterated her offer to research this issue. She
recalled that putting on makeup, looking in the rearview mrror
and listening to nmusic or a radio conprise different |evels of
di straction. She also recalled a table in the NHISA study
conpares the levels of distraction. She offered to review the
table for the commttee.

1: 27: 49 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG referred to page 1, line 5, of HB 22,
and related his understanding that |anguage prohibits cell phone
use while driving when the vehicle is in notion but does not
apply to a driver using a cell phone when he/she has just turned
on the radio.

MS. CASHEN sai d she was not certain.

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 9- March 1, 2011



REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG further related his understanding that
the use of the term™"driving" is a technical term which does not

mean just turning on the car to run a heater. There is a
distinction between "driving" and "operating a vehicle" which
requires the process of noving. He said he would like this

distinction to be clear on the record.

REPRESENTATI VE PETERSEN asked for further clarification on
whether it would be legal for a person to use a cell phone while
the vehicle is running so long as the vehicle is not in notion.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG of fered his belief a body of |aw exists
that pertains to driving wunder the influence (DU ) that

addresses this issue. He recalled the DU provisions do not
apply and it would not be a violation of the |aw when a person
is parked alongside the roadway wusing the heater. He

acknowl edged that a person could not use a cell phone while
stopped at a stop light, but offered his belief if the car was
parked off the roadway in park that it would be all owable.

REPRESENTATI VE MUNQZ answer ed yes.

1: 30: 49 PM

REPRESENTATI VE PRU TT referred to Representative Gardner's bill
HB 128 and asked for her staff's input on what the bill provides

in terns of cell phone usage. He related that the other bills
on the cal endar have been addressed, except for HB 128.

HB 128- BAN CELL PHONE USE BY M NORS VWHEN DRI VI NG

1: 31: 22 PM

CHAIR P. WLSON announced that the next order of business would
be HOUSE BILL NO 128, "An Act relating to prohibiting the use
of cellular telephones by mnors when driving notor vehicles;
and providing for an effective date.”

1:31:39 PM

RANDI SPRAY, Intern, Representative Berta Gardner, Alaska State
Legislature, stated that HB 128 prohibits drivers under the age
of 18 fromusing cell phones while driving.

1: 31: 46 PM

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -10- March 1, 2011



REPRESENTATIVE PRU TT recalled that the commttee briefly
di scussed other cell phone bills, but not HB 128. He asked why
the sponsor |imted HB 128 to minors only and for the sponsor's
vi ew on broader coverage.

CHAIR P. WLSON also agreed it was inportant to consider HB 128
in case the comittee wants to consider incorporating any
provision into HB 22. She asked for clarification on the reason
for the bill and why the cell phone ban is [imted to teenagers.

1: 32: 39 PM

M5. SPRAY explained that HB 128 woul d prohibit anyone under the
age of 18 to from using a cell phone while driving. It would
al so make cell phone use a secondary offense so the driver would
have to be pulled over for another infraction in order to be
cited. The sponsor introduced this bill specifically limted to
mnors is because they are nost at risk from using their cel

phone while driving. The statistics show notor vehicle crashes
are the nunber one cause of death for teenagers. In Al aska,
statistics show that notor vehicle crashes are the nunber two
causes of injuries requiring hospitalization. Drivers between
the ages of 16-17 have the highest fatality rates in crashes,
and approximately 36 percent of <crashes in Alaska involve
drivers between the ages of 16-20, yet this age group represents

only 7.4 percent of Alaska' s drivers. She concl uded that
Representative Gardner introduced HB 128 since it targets those
nmost at risk. The bill also serves to teach teenagers proper

driving habits by saying, "This is the law, not just good
advi ce, " she said.

1: 33: 56 PM

REPRESENTATI VE PETERSEN asked whether she <could give the
commttee her insight and predict how teenagers would feel about
HB 128.

M5. SPRAY did not think mnors would |like HB 128. She recalled
being a passenger in a vehicle while an inexperienced teenager
was using his/her cell phone. She said she was scared when the
driver used his/her cell phone.

[HB 128 was hel d over.]

HB 22-NO CELL PHONE USE VWHEN DRI VI NG

CHAIR P. WLSON asked to now take public testinony on HB 22.

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -11- March 1, 2011



1: 35: 22 PM

ALFRED MCKI NLEY, SR, Executive Conmittee Menber, Gand Canp
Al aska Native Brotherhood/ Al aska Native Sisterhood (ANB), stated
that he supports HB 22 because his brother-in-law, M. John
Hope, was killed and his sister was badly injured. He did not
want others to be killed due to cell phone use. He suggested
the bill should be expanded to include individuals riding a
bi cycle while using a cell phone. He suggested the bill should
al so extend to pedestrians since pedestrians sonetines step into
traffic without |ooking and he has alnost hit people who step
into the street while using cell phones. He remarked that
pedestrians sinply expect to have the right of way so they step
right in front of him He characterized HB 22 as a good bill.

MR. MCKI NLEY expl ai ned when he receives a call on his cell phone
while driving that he answers the call but tells the caller he
will call back. He acknow edged the dangers of wusing a cell
phone while driving. He has personally experienced this while
in Seattle driving on Interstate 5, which he characterized as
very busy, and his cell phone rang. He reiterated the problens
with cell phones and illustrated the risk by stating that his
brother in law, John Hope, is no |onger here.

CHAIR P. WLSON pointed out if HB 22 were to pass that M.
McKi nl ey woul d not be able to answer his phone while driving.

MR. MCKI NLEY answered that he did not have a problem with that
restriction.

1: 39: 48 PM

REPRESENTATI VE PETERSEN asked whether the M. Hope's accident
was caused by sonmeone using a cell phone.

MR. MCKI NLEY acknow edged that the person responsible for the
accident was wusing his cell phone and although it was not
proven, the person was al so drinking al cohol.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG renmarked that M. MKinley' s testinony
was inportant particularly since this is the first tinme he
recalled testinony on cell phone use while operating a bicycle.

He said that as far as pedestrians, "lI'm not going to go there.
People can walk and I'm not going to deal with that." However
cell phone use by bicyclists was another matter since hel/she

nmust bal ance at the sane tinme and bicycles are often used during

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -12- March 1, 2011



the winter on snow and i ce. He envisioned using a cell phone
while balancing on a bicycle as extrenely risky. He asked
whet her he thought the bill should al so address bicyclists using
cel |l phones.

MR. MCKI NLEY agr eed.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked the chair's perm ssion to explore
thi s avenue.

1: 42: 37 PM

JERRY LUCKHAUPT, Assistant Revisor, Legislative Legal Counsel,
Legislative Legal and Research Services, Legislative Affairs
Agency (LAA), introduced hinself.

1:43: 01 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked for clarification on the term
"driving" as it pertains to cell phone use. He asked whether a
person would be prohibited from listening to a radio if the
vehi cl e was parked off the roadway.

MR. LUCKHAUPT agreed, noting the reason the bill |anguage uses
"driving" instead of "operating” is to address that issue. The
broader term of "operating” is used to designate a person in
control of the vehicle so for "drunk driving" purposes if a
person has the keys in his/her pocket but is asleep in the car
the person is still considered to be in control of the vehicle.
He advi sed the person could be convicted of operating a vehicle.
However, the term "driving" is considered actively driving, he
sai d.

1:43: 47 PM

CHAIR P. WLSON recalled pulling over to the side of the roadway
to answer her cell phone. She asked whet her answering the phone
while idling would be all owabl e under the bill.

MR. LUCKHAUPT responded that the term "driving" was used for
sonmeone pulled over and not actively driving. He thought it
woul d be better if the car was also in park to avoid any driver
distraction, but he did not think she would be subject to a
penal ty under this section.

1: 44: 38 PM

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -13- March 1, 2011



REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG referred to page 1, line 5 of HB 22 to
the use of the term "notor vehicle" and asked whether that would
i ncl ude notorcycles and notor scooters.

MR. LUCKHAUPT advised that the term "notor vehicle" is defined
in AS 28.90.990 (16), which reads: "motor vehicle" neans a
vehicle which is self-propelled except a vehicle noved by human
or animal power;..." This definition would not include a
bi cycle or carriage pulled by horses.

1:45: 25 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said in the event the comm ttee decided
to expand the bill to include bicycles that it my wsh to
consi der as a conceptual anmendnent the | anguage: "when driving a
notor vehicle or bicycle."

MR. LUCKHAUPT agreed. He al so suggested considering addi ng "any

ot her human power." He pointed out a regulation that addresses
unicycles restricts the use of wunicycles in certain areas of
t own. He suggested that bicycles could also be addressed in a

simlar manner or the conmttee could expand the |anguage to
i ncl ude "any human powered device."

1: 46: 26 PM

REPRESENTATI VE PETERSEN asked whether skateboard use could be
added to the bill.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG offered his belief that would fall
under human powered devi ces.

MR. LUCKHAUPT advised that technically a skateboard would be a
vehi cl e al though he remarked he does not normally think of it as
one. However, soneone cannot ride a skateboard on a highway or
vehi cul ar way since that activity would be prohibited. He added
it my be possible other provisions would allow use of a
skat eboard in those areas. He offered to consider skateboard
use further since he has not previously considered a skateboard
as being a vehicle.

1:47: 37 PM

REPRESENTATI VE PRU TT asked whether notor vehicle would also
i ncl ude four wheel ers, snow machi nes, and boats.

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -14- March 1, 2011



MR. LUCKHAUPT answered that four wheelers and snow nachi nes are

considered a notor vehi cl e, while Dboats are consi dered
separately. A person cannot operate a boat on a highway or
vehi cul ar area so boats would not be included in the bill. I n

response to Representative Pruitt, he stated that a riding |awn
mower is considered a motor vehicle and people have been
convicted of DU s while operating riding | awnnowers.

CHAIR P. WLSON offered her belief that people would not Iikely
hear a cell phone ring while operating a four-wheeler or snow
machi ne.

REPRESENTATI VE PRU TT said he was uncertain of this since he
recalled observing a pilot answer his/her cell phone while
operating an airplane and airplanes are noi sy, too.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG reiterated that he had not previously
consi dered expanding the bill to add bicycl es.

1: 50: 56 PM

CHAIR P. WLSON, after first determning no one else wished to
testify, asked to keep public testinmony open on HB 22 since sone
public nmenbers may still wish to nake coments on the proposed
CS

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG offered his willingness to work on a
conceptual amendnent to include bicycles and to offer it in the
next conmttee of referral.

CHAIR P. WLSON expressed her concern that the public may need
nore time to participate so she preferred to hold HB 22 over.
She related she has experienced cell phone use while driving and

the stressed the inportance of the bill. She predicted that
sonme people may not like the bill so she would like the public
to have additional tinme to testify. She also wanted the

conmmittee to consider how to accommodate truck drivers or others
who need to comunicate with dispatchers.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG stated that he worked extensively
during this past interim with the Al aska Truckers Association
t his. He reported that the federal government is working to
promul gate regulations to ban all cell phone use in commerci al
trucking operations. He suggested that the conmttee not
address the truckers in this bill since the federal regulation
will supersede the Al aska |aw. He offered his belief that the
Al aska Truckers Associ ation supports this approach.

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 15- March 1, 2011



REPRESENTATI VE PETERSEN pointed out that many truckers do not
use a cell phone but use citizen band (CB) radio. This bil
woul d not affect truckers using CB radi os.

CHAIR P. WLSON acknow edged that the representatives present
from the Departnment of transportation and the Departnent of Law
are noddi ng their assent.

1:57:11 PM

REPRESENTATI VE PETERSEN suggested that the conmittee should al so
consi der whether this bill should address cell phone use as a
primary or secondary offense. He asked whether a notorist

shoul d be stopped solely for cell phone use. He also recalled a
zero fiscal note for HB 22, but after hearing the statistics
reported today that he was uncertain it should be a zero fisca
not e. He suggested additional officers mght be necessary to
enforce HB 22, if the bill passes. He asked for clarification
on these issues.

CHAIR P. WLSON answered that she strongly supports keeping cel
phone use while driving as a primary offense in HB 22.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG agreed that cell phone use should be a
primary offense but he said he would |like to expand the bill to
i nclude cell phone use while operating a bicycle. He said he
also would like to broaden the bill to include vehicles operated
by human power. He offered to work with the bill sponsor on
draft |anguage to include those provisions.

REPRESENTATI VE MUNQOZ asked for clarification on expanding the
bill to include bicycles.

CHAIR P. WLSON explained the comrittee heard testinony earlier
today about a notor vehicle crash caused by soneone using a cel
phone while riding a bicycle.

REPRESENTATI VE MUNOZ offered to give the idea sonme thought. She
related her primary interest and focus for HB 22 is to address
drivers and notor vehicles.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG offered to speak to the sponsor and if
she was agreeable that he would draft | anguage for
consi derati on.

2:03: 04 PM

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -16- March 1, 2011



REPRESENTATI VE PETERSEN suggested considering how to di ssem nate
information to the broad range of people that may be affected by
HB 22, especially since fines are included in the bill.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked for clarification on the public
education aspect and whether the bill should include a tenporary
provi sion to provide an educati on conponent.

M5. CASHEN advised nenber that distracted driving is one of

AHSO s top priorities. She offered that the departnment has
i mpl enented distracted driving and radio ads in its statew de
medi a. Thus, no additional costs would be incurred by the

depart nent. The AHSO woul d bunmp up its advertising to a |eve

two or three, she said. Currently, the departnent ads highlight
di stracted driving. "Don't put on your |lipstick. Don't open
your cell phone. Don't look in the back of your car while
you're driving," she said. She anticipated the AHSO woul d focus
on cell phone use, to address hand held or hands free cell

phone, based on provisions in HB 22 if the passes. The nedi a
piece would also identity the effective date of the bill. She
envi sioned the departnment would use saturation advertising about
a nonth before the law s effective date, then two weeks before
and two weeks after the effective date. Additionally, the AHSO
would put the ad in its advertising rotation so an ad would run
periodically. Additionally, the departnment would periodically
change the law so people would not view the sane ad year after
year .

2: 06: 33 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG rel ated his understanding that the AHSO
woul d not need any additional |anguage to carry out the public
educati on.

M5. CASHEN answer ed no.

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG asked whether an effective date would
be necessary.

M5. CASHEN answered that an effective date is not necessary
since the AHSO already has distracted driving as its top
priority.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked whether the Departnent of Public

Safety would need to be contacted with respect to an effective
dat e.

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -17- March 1, 2011



M5. CASHEN answered that while the AHSO works closely with the
DPS, the departnent does not hold any discussions on effective
dates on bills. She explained that the department would only
consider the effective date for planning purpose just as it did
for the child booster seat |aw.

2:08: 10 PM
REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked whet her DPS shoul d be cont act ed.

REPRESENTATI VE MJUNOZ offered to check with the DPS on the
effecti ve date.

2:08:29 PM

REPRESENTATI VE PRU TT asked for clarification on whether cell
phone use is currently classified as distracting driving.

MS. CASHEN answered yes.

REPRESENTATI VE PRU TT asked for clarification on the criteria
necessary for a law enforcenment officer to pull over a driver
using a cell phone.

2:09:12 PM

HANS BRI NKE, Captain; Conmander, Bureau of H ghway Patrol (BHP)
Al aska State Trooper (AST), Departnent of Public Safety (DPS)
related his understanding the question is what the officer would
need to initiate a traffic stop for a person using a cell phone.
He answered that if a person is using a cell phone and it is not
for an excepted practice, the officer could initiate a traffic
st op.

REPRESENTATIVE PRU TT asked for clarification on excepted
practice.

CAPTAIN BRINKE related that excepted use is defined in another
statute and includes using a cell phone as a gl obal positioning

device, and map systens, which are often in smart phones. He
described a traffic stop he made in which he had observed a
driver manipulating a cell phone. When the driver was stopped

for a violation, he/she indicated use of a global positioning
devi ce, which was all owabl e under the |aw, he said.

2:11: 22 PM

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 18- March 1, 2011



ANNE CARPENETI, Assistant Attorney GCeneral, Legal Services

Section, Crimnal Division, Departnment of Law (DOL), introduced
hersel f.
REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked why this bill is necessary if the

state has a distracted driving | aw.

REPRESENTATI VE PRU TT said he would also like clarification on

how this bill differs fromthe current | aw woul d be appreci at ed.
2:12:13 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG recal l ed prior discussions on an anti -
text bill. He also recalled that besides identifying the person
using a cell phone that it was necessary to show that the
activity distracted the driver. This bill would nake distracted

driving per se, which would provide an easier burden of proof.

MS. CARPENETI agreed. She recalled earlier testinony by M.
Cashen that described the AHSO s advertising approach for
distracted driving and not necessarily to a particular statute.
She thinks cell phone use is considered distracted driving as a
practical matter.

CHAIR P. WLSON pointed out that drivers engage in distracted
driving, but unless an accident happens it is not necessarily
against the law, but is simlar to other activity such as
turning on the radio. She recalled a bad accident in her
di strict caused by a distracted driver.

M5. CARPENETI stated that distracting behaviors such as putting
on lipstick, reading a book, or looking in the backseat are not
specifically prohibited but the state has statutes for negligent
or reckless driving that could be used to cite the driver.

CHAIR P. WLSON indicated that M. Cashen is nodding in
agr eenent .

2:15:13 PM

MR. LUCKHAUPT pointed out that the separate statutes Captain
Brinke referred to relate to operating a vehicle with a screen
device, which include texting or watching a novie. Sone
exceptions to that statute allow sone use for global positioning
devices or a long distance trucker is allowed to use a data
term nal to input weight points or communicate his/her

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -19- March 1, 2011



di spat cher. Anot her exception applies to viewing caller

identification informtion. He advised that none of these
exceptions would affect HB 22. This bill would not allow any
cell phone use except for a hands-free device. He said he

wanted to clarify this since the defenses in the screen device
provisions in current statute do not apply to HB 22.

2:17: 26 PM

REPRESENTATI VE PETERSEN asked for a specific statute that
defines distracted driving.

MR. LUCKHAUPT answered that the statutes do not identify a crine
of distracted driving but as M. Carpeneti nentioned, the
statutes identify reckless or negligent driving. Thus, if a
driver does sonething that would rise to that |evel he/she could
be cited, but reaching for sonething such as a radio does not
normally rise to that |evel. He commented that if someone was
riding wwth dog on lap and the dog was distracting the driver,
it is possible that the driver's behavior could rise to |evel of
an of fense, but other facts would |ikely need to be consi dered.

2:19: 09 PM

M TCH FALK, Owner, Bullw nkle's Pizza, stated that he has often
truck drivers use a cell phone while attenpting to shift. He
offered his belief that the drivers are forced to steer wth
their knees. He pointed out that kids in Juneau have hard
enough time learning to drive, especially with the lack of
driver's education. He offered his support for HB 22.

REPRESENTATI VE PETERSEN asked whether he would get hands free
cell phones for his pizza drivers if this bill passes.

MR. FALK agreed he probably would do so. He said that
communi cation is necessary in order for his drivers to do their
jobs. He added that cell phone use is on the rise and needs to
be checked.

2:23:51 PM

REPRESENTATI VE MUNQZ recapped outstanding issues on HB 22. She
offered to contact DPS on the effective date. She renmarked that
the AHSO can incorporate the advertising into its current plan

She offered to work with Representative Petersen on the issue of
primary versus secondary offenses. She also offered to work

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 20- March 1, 2011



with Representative G uenberg on whether to expand the bill to
i ncl ude bi cycl es.

CHAIR P. WLSON stressed that HB 22 should address cell phone
use as a primary offense. She acknowl edged that minors do not
have ready access to drivers' training. She stressed that if it
against the law to use a cell phone that it sends a nessage.

REPRESENTATI VE MUNQZ offered her belief the bill should apply to
all drivers. She said she feels strongly about that aspect.

REPRESENTATI VE PRUI TT asked to reconsider the zero fiscal note
and whether sone cost nmay be needed in order to inplenment the
bill.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG agr eed.

M5. CARPENETI responded that the zero fiscal inpact is not an
issue. It is not whether the activity is a primary or secondary
of fense, but rather that the penalty constitutes a violation.
The agency does not appear in court for nobst violations so this
woul d not have an effect on their offices or on the assistant
district attorneys.

2:29: 06 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked Captain Brinke for his conments
on the fiscal note.

CAPTAIN BRI NKE deferred to Lt. Rodney Dial since he prepared the
DPS fiscal note.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked for clarification on the DPS
fiscal note.

RCDNEY DI AL, Li eut enant, Deputy Commander, A Detachnent,
Division of Alaska State Troopers, Departnment of Public Safety
(DPS), said that passage of HB 22 would add an additional
of fense officers could issue citations for. However, it would
not change the tinme officers spent on traffic enforcenent. | t
may nean a tradeoff since an officer conducting a stop for cel
phone wuse may not apprehend other violators such as those
speedi ng notori sts. He reiterated that traffic enforcenment is
based on all owable tine.

2:32: 01 PM

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -21- March 1, 2011



REPRESENTATI VE PETERSEN asked how nany points would be assessed

against a driver's license if the bill passed and the person was
cited for driving while using a cell phone. He asked whet her
designating points assessed against a driver's |icense would

need to be added to the bill.

LI EUTENANT DI AL said he thought the court would probably set the
driver license points.

REPRESENTATI VE PETERSEN related the nunber of points is
inmportant to consider since it could affect a driver's insurance
rates.

CHAIR P. WLSON offered her belief that people would |ikely want
to be careful not to use their cell phones if they want to keep
their driver's |icense.

M5. CARPENETI said she was uncertain how the points would be set
if this bill were to pass.

2:33:31 PM

MR.  LUCKHAUPT explained that AS 28.15.221 sets up the point
system and provides for the comm ssioner of the Departnent of
Adm nistration or DPS to assign the points based on the
recognition of the severity of the offense. This process is
used for every new offense. He offered his belief that -cel
phone use while driving would be akin to other basic offenses,
which is wusually set at two points. In response to Chair
Wl son, he said the legislature does not generally advise the
departnment since it is usually a process set by regul ation.

2:34: 55 PM

REPRESENTATI VE MUNQZ referred to the hands free provision in HB
22 as a carryover from testinony | ast | egi slature on
Representative Doogan's bill. She recalled testinony by

commercial operators in favor of hands-free provision, which is
t he reason she preserved it when introducing HB 22.

2:35:36 PM

REPRESENTATI VE MUNOZ remarked as a joint prine sponsor she has
recei ved considerable witten comments and tel ephone coments on
the bill. She stated that she has also received support from
the Alaska Police Oficer's Association, the Al aska Association
of Chiefs of Police, the Wnen Police of Alaska, and several

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -22- March 1, 2011



i ndi viduals and comunity organi zations have expressed support
for HB 22.

[HB 22 was hel d over. ]

2:37: 08 PM

ADJ QURNIVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House

Transportation Standing Commttee neeting was adjourned at 2:37
p. m

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -23- March 1, 2011



